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Dear Secretary Mayorkas, 
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ANO NONPROLIFERATION 

We write with grave concern regarding the Department of Homeland Security's (DHS) failure to 

properly enforce federal law involving the unlawful presence of immigrants in the United States. 
As you know, 8 USC § 1 l 82(a)(9)(B)(i) explicitly prohibits any immigrant from obtaining a visa 
or being admitted into the United States if: 

(1) the immigrant was unlawfully present in the United States for more than 180 days and
again seeks admission into the country within 3 years after the immigrant's voluntary
departure; or
(2) the immigrant was unlawfully present in the United States for more than 1 year and
again seeks admission into the country within 10 years after the immigrant's departure or
removal.

This federal law has been in effect for over 25 years. However, on June 24, 2022, U.S. Citizenship 
and Immigration Services (USCIS) determined a new and unprecedented interpretation of the 
language, announcing that even if an immigrant returns to the United States, "with or without 
authorization, during the statutory 3-year or 10-year period," they may be admitted into the 
country. Further, this guidance states that an immigrant's location and manner of return to the 
United States during the statutory 3-year or 10-year ban are now "irrelevant for purposes of 
determining inadmissibility." 1 This policy guidance is directly and incomprehensibly antithetical 
to the letter and purpose of this law. 

Our southern border is in complete and utter disarray. Since February 2021, over 2.97 million 
migrants have attempted to illegally cross our nation's southern border, and these drastic numbers 
continue to accelerate. In 2021, the number of migrant encounters at the southern border increased 
by 271 % compared to 2020.2 In 2022, more immigrants have been encountered at the border each 
month than the record numbers of last year. 3 Throughout this catastrophe, we have seen human 

1 U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services, June 24, 2022. "Policy Alert SUBJECT: INA 212(a)(9)(B) Policy 
Manual Guidance." https://www.uscis.gov/sites/default/files/document/policy-manual-updates/20220624-
INA2 l2a9B.pdf 
2 U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Last modified June 15, 2022. ;'Southwest Land Border Encounters." 
https://www.cbp.gov/newsroom/stats/southwest-land-border-encounters 
3 Ibid. 

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

AUSTIN.LAND
Received







 

 
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services 

Office of the Director (MS 2000) 

Camp Springs, MD  20588-0009 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 7, 2022 

 

 

The Honorable Ann Wagner 

U.S. House of Representatives 

Washington, DC  20515 

 

Dear Representative Wagner: 

 

Thank you for your July 22, 2022, letter to the U.S. Department of Homeland Security.  

Secretary Mayorkas asked that I respond on his behalf. 

  

As noted in your letter, U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) recently 

issued policy guidance on inadmissibility under section 212(a)(9)(B) of the Immigration and 

Nationality Act (INA), and more specifically, the effect of returning to the United States during 

the statutory 3-year or 10-year period after departure or removal.  Under this policy guidance, a 

non-citizen who again seeks admission more than 3 or 10 years after the relevant departure or 

removal is not inadmissible under section 212(a)(9)(B) of the INA even if the non-citizen 

returned to the United States, with or without authorization, during the statutory 3-year or 10-year 

period.1 

 

Prior to issuing this policy guidance, USCIS had not issued policy guidance on this 

specific issue in a policy memorandum, the Adjudicator’s Field Manual (AFM), or USCIS Policy 

Manual (PM).  This policy guidance is designed to ensure efficient and consistent adjudication in 

cases involving this ground of inadmissibility and enable the government to preserve significant 

resources.  In formulating the policy guidance, USCIS considered the effects of the policy on all 

DHS components, and USCIS believes this policy guidance represents the best interpretation of 

the statute.   

 

With respect to migrant encounters along the U.S. border, DHS does not anticipate this 

policy guidance will significantly increase or decrease the number of non-citizens attempting to 

enter the United States unlawfully.   

 

Thank you again for your letter and interest in this important issue.  The cosigners of your 

letter will receive separate, identical responses.  Should you require any additional assistance, 

please have your staff contact the USCIS Office of Legislative Affairs at (240) 721-3801. 

 
1 Note however, that the manner in which the non-citizen returned to the United States during the statutory 3-year or 

10-year period may result in the accrual of a new period of unlawful presence or result in inadmissibility under other 

grounds. 
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Respectfully, 

 

 

 

 

 

Ur M. Jaddou 

Director 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




